ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON M LI TARY AND VETERANS AFFAI RS
January 24, 2017
1: 02 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Chris Tuck, Chair
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Vice Chair
Representative Justin Parish
Representative |Ivy Spohnhol z
Represent ati ve George Rauscher
Representative Lora Rei nbold
Representati ve Dan Saddl er

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO 2
"An Act relating to a voluntary preference for veterans by
private enpl oyers."”
- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 2

SHORT TI TLE:. PRIV EMPLOYER VOLUNTARY VET PREFERENCE
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) TUCK

01/ 18/ 17 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/9/ 17

01/ 18/ 17 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 17 (H MV, L&C

01/ 24/ 17 (H MLV AT 1:00 PM GRUENBERG 120

W TNESS REG STER

KENDRA KLOSTER, St aff

Representative Chris Tuck

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Gave an overview of HB 2 on behalf of
Representative Tuck, prine sponsor.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -1- January 24, 2017



PATTY W LBANKS, Oaner

Pol ar Marine Al aska, LLC

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 2.

ROBERT DOEHL, Deputy Conmm ssi oner

Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans’ Affairs (DWA)
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 2.

STEVEN W LLI AMS, Enpl oynent Security Anal yst

Di vi sion of Enploynent & Training Services
Department of Labor & Wbrkforce Devel opnment (DLWD)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered details on HB 2.

MARK SAN SCOUCI, Regional State Liaison

U. S. Departnent of Defense (DoD)

Lakewood, Washi ngton

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 2.

VERDI E BONEN, Director of Veterans Affairs

Ofice of Veteran Affairs

Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs (DWA)
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 2.

RUSSELL BALL
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 2.

DAVI D DEMENNO, Owner

Al aska Land C earing Inc.

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 2.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1: 02: 43 PM

CHAIR CHRIS TUCK called the House Special Conmttee on Mlitary
and Veterans' Affairs nmeeting to order at 1: 02 p.m
Representatives LeDoux, Parish, Spohnholz, Raucher, Reinbold,

Saddl er, and Tuck were present at the call to order.

[ There was brief discussion regarding granting Chair Tuck
authority to draft bills on behalf of the commttee.]

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 2- January 24, 2017



HB  2-PRIV EMPLOYER VOLUNTARY VET PREFERENCE

1: 06: 04 PM

CHAIR TUCK stated the only order of business would be HOUSE BI LL
NO. 2, "An Act relating to a voluntary preference for veterans
by private enpl oyers."

CHAIR TUCK, as prime sponsor of HB 2, commented that the
proposed |egislation would allow the State of Al aska to use an
optional veteran hiring preference under Section 11 of the Cvi

Rights Act of 1964. The waiver in Section 11 grants preference
to veterans, so long as they are authorized under federal,

state, and |local |aw. Currently 37 states allow this for
private enployers, and all states and territories allow this for
public enpl oyees. He stated that enploynent for returning

veterans can be difficult, and two thirds of veterans define
finding a job as the greatest challenge in the transition from
mlitary to civilian life.

CHAI R TUCK paraphrased from the fourth and fifth paragraphs of
the sponsor statenment, which reads as follows [original
punct uation provided]:

As of Novenber 2016, the National Bureau of Labor
Statistics show the jobless rate for young nale

veterans aged 18-24 still exceed their civilian
counterparts (239,000 veterans aged 18-24 were
unenpl oyed ver sus 159, 000 of their civilian

counterparts).

The mlitary discharges 160,000 active duty service
menbers and approxi mately 110,000 reserve and Nati onal
Guard service nenbers each year. According to the
Def ense Manpower Data Center 2015 data, over 2,000
mlitary personnel returned to Al aska upon separation.

CHAI R TUCK added that Al aska has the highest nunmber of veterans
per capita, and has long prided itself on being a |eader in
supporting veterans and active duty nmenbers. Al aska's great
busi nesses are wlling and able to assist veterans in their
enpl oyment endeavors. He declared it is time to extend the
opportunity for enployers in the private sector to adopt a
veteran hiring preference policy. He informed that the bill has
support from the U S. Departnent of Defense (DoD) and the
Nati onal Federation of |ndependent Businesses (NFIB)

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 3- January 24, 2017



1: 09: 27 PM

KENDRA KLOSTER, Staff, Representative Chris Tuck, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, asserted that HB 2 clarifies that nothing in AS
18.80, the chapter protecting various persons from unlawf ul
discrimnation, "is intended to prohibit a private enployer from
granting an enployment preference.” She explained the bill says
that if enployers would like to offer this preference, they may.
It is not a requirenent, but a voluntary option. She reiterated
that 50 states do this for public enployees; 37 states now do
this for private enpl oyers.

1:11:29 PM
CHAI R TUCK opened public testinony on HB 2.
1:11: 44 PM

PATTY W LBANKS, Owner, Polar WMrine Alaska, LLC testified in
support of HB 2. She reiterated that 37 other states already
provide legislation simlar to the proposal. She stated that
she has wondered why Al aska hasn't offered something like this
before, because she thinks it is a great benefit to our
vet er ans. Wth federal hiring freezes, veterans will need this
nore wth private enployers. She drew on her previous
experience as a colonel, stating that she wants to see young nen
and wonen coming out of the mlitary getting a step up. Thi s
preference would show support from the conmunity, state, and
country. She conmented on the great benefit to the enployer who
want to reach out the veterans but is worried about show ng
preference to one group. She endorsed the voluntary aspect of
the proposal, wth it being a benefit to the veterans and
enpl oyers.

1:14: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked what kind of snmall business M.
W | banks owns, and what kind of hiring she does.

M5. W LBANKS answered that her business in Anchorage installs
radar and el ectronic systens for boats. She's been in business
for three years, and she stated she can see that her business
woul d want to reach out to veterans' groups for hiring.

1:16: 15 PM

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -4- January 24, 2017



ROBERT DOEHL, Deputy Conmm ssioner, Departnent of Mlitary &
Veterans’ Affairs (DWA), stated that the departnent endorses HB
2. He said that HB 2 would, on an optional basis, renove a
l[imtation on private enployers that is not set on public
enpl oyers.

1:17: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if an enployer currently can hire
whonever he/she wants to enploy, as long as he/she isn't
di scrim nating based on race or other protected categories.

MR. DCEHL responded that in other in states' case laws, it was
found that one cannot <create a special category or hiring
preference based on a veteran's affiliation wthout specific
aut hority.

1:18: 03 PM

CHAIR TUCK added that under HB 2, enployers could advertise for
veterans to apply.

1:18: 24 PM

STEVEN WLLIAMS, Enployment Security Analyst, Division of
Enpl oynent & Training Services Departnent of Labor & Wrkforce
Devel opnent (DLVD) , affirmed Chair Tuck's statenent and
clarified that enployers can advertise that they encourage
veterans to apply.

1:19: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the departnment would prosecute an
enpl oyer who advertises that he/she prefers veterans and
institutes such a hiring practice.

MR. WLLIAMS stated that the departnment would not prosecute, the
department does not enforce or regulate policies "like that."

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if anyone would prosecute the
enpl oyer.

MR WLLIAVS stated he was not sure, but would do research and
foll ow up.

1:19: 46 PM

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 5- January 24, 2017



CHAIR TUCK stated that HB 2 also protects the enployer from
civil suits.

1:19: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked M. Doehl if the departnent plans
to support all bills that will conme before the commttee.

1:20: 19 PM

VR. DCEHL responded that they wll anal yze each bill
individually on nmerit to determne whether or not it s
appropriate to express support, and in addition, wll get

approval from the Ofice of the Governor before speaking in
support of a bill.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if the departnent's current support
is predicated on that analysis.

MR, DOEHL stated this is correct - based on the departnent's
analysis of HB 2, it thinks it's worthy of support.

1:21: 26 PM

MARK SAN SQOUCI, Regional State Liaison, U'S. Departnment of
Def ense (DoD), testified in support of HB 2. He stated that
2,004 Al askans separated from active reserve and National Guard
duty | ast year. These veterans are comng back with skill sets
previously paid for by federal tax dollars. He stated the issue
has been advocated for by the National Conference of State
Legislators (NCSL), is now in 37 states' statutes, and is being
heard in Al aska and New York this session.

1: 23: 28 PM

VERDI E BOWNEN, Director of Veterans Affairs, Ofice of Veteran
Affairs, Departrment of Mlitary & Veterans Affairs (DWA),
stated that he is responsible for helping 74,000 veterans and
their 150,000 dependents in Al aska understand and secure the
benefits earned through service to the nation and state. The
departnent operates a nunber of prograns to support veterans
returning to civilian life after mlitary service and to help
them find nmeani ngful enploynent. The departnent supports all
efforts to help veterans make successful transitions back to
civilian life and find jobs that are financially adequate and
personally fulfilling. He stated that the departnent hel ps find
enpl oyers who support mlitary responsibilities such as: drill

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 6- January 24, 2017



weekends, annual training, and federal activations. M. Bowen
opined that HB 2 would be a useful tool in snmooth transitions
from mlitary to civilian life and would allow enployers to
preferentially hire veterans to take advantage of their
technical, vocational, academc, and |eadership skills attained
whil e serving the nation.

MR. BOVEN stated that veterans' experiences, maturity, teamork,

loyalty, and civic mndedness nake them great enployees. He
said HB 2 would allow enployers to find and hire enployees who
will be steadily reliable workers, and will best serve those who

hire them The office does not anticipate a fiscal inpact other
than positive effects from hiring, and anticipates no inpact on
private sector enpl oyers.

MR. BOWEN noted that HB 2 defines "veteran" as "a person who was
honorably discharged from service in" the followng [found on
page 1, lines 7-12, which read as foll ows]:

(1) the arnmed forces of the United States;

(2) a reserve unit of the arned forces of
the United States;

(3) the Alaska Territorial Guard;

(4) the Alaska Arny National Guard;

(5) the Alaska Air National CGuard; or

(6) the Alaska Naval Mliti a.

1: 25: 49 PM

MR. BOWEN disclosed his wunderstanding that the sponsor is
considering an anmendnent to extend the ability of enployers to
grant voluntary enploynent preference to personnel actively
serving in good standing in the guard and reserve conponents.
Guard and reserve conponents enployed in Alaska's communities
possess the sane qualifications and offer enployers the sane
advantages as veterans; therefore, the departnent approves of
offering these service nenbers the sane preferential hiring.
The departnment has an issue with the existing statute regarding
equality in providing preference. The reserve conponent does
not have a set time of service, but the National Guard does. He
cited [AS 39.25.159(f)(3)], which gives the definition of a
menber of the National Guard, as foll ows:

(3) "nmenber of the national guard" nmeans a person
who is presently serving as a nenber of the Al aska
National CGuard and who has at |east eight years of
service in the Al aska National Guard;

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -7- January 24, 2017



MR. BOWNEN clarified that this statute reflects that a nenber
must have served eight years before receiving the benefit under
this bill. He suggested the |anguage shoul d read:

"menber of the national guard" neans a person who is
presently serving under honorable conditions or has
been rel eased under the sane conditions while serving
t he Al aska National Guard.

The change woul d give those who serve in the National Guard and
reserve conponents the sane access to benefits. M. Bowen
rel ayed the departnment's belief that nenbers of the Al aska State
Def ense Force possess many of the sane qualities and skills as
veterans and represent a pool of attractive enployees. The
departnment also believes enployers are inclined to selectively
hire people with mlitary training and teamwrk experience, and
that enployers should be able to extend hiring preference to
menbers or veterans of the Alaska State Defense Force. He
explained that the defense force does not 1issue discharge
docunents the sanme way active conponents do today, but does have
means of docunenting service and identifying nenbers in good
st andi ng. The departnment believes HB 2 offers another way to
snooth the transition from active duty service to civilian life,
hel ps maintain strong enployer/enployee relationships for the
Nati onal Guard and reserve conponents, adds strength and pride
to the Al aska State Defense Force, and serves the needs of
Al aska enpl oyers at the sane tine. M. Bowen stated that DWA
and the Ofice of Veteran Affairs fully supports HB 2. He
referred to the second paragraph of a letter witten by Craig
Campbel |, which read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Enpl oyer Support of the Guard and Reserve (ESGR) is a
Departnent of Defense program established in 1972 to
pronote cooperation and understanding between Reserve
Conponent Service nenbers and their civilian enployers
and to assist in the resolution of conflicts arising
froman enployee's mlitary conmtnent.

MR. BOWEN stated that ESGR understands the unique talents and
skills Guard Reserve Service nenbers can bring to a civilian
wor kf or ce

1:29: 19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER asked if there have been nany cases
where enpl oyers woul d have needed this bill.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 8- January 24, 2017



MR. BOVEN stated that he is not aware of any instance wherein an
enpl oyer has gotten into trouble because a bill like this has
not been in place. He offered his opinion that if the bill was
in place, then there would be an increase of enploynent in
highly skilled jobs.

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER asked if the proposal would be another
"tool in your bag" to continue to work with the veterans.

MR. BOWEN stated that is correct - the departnent is adding nore
tools to the enployers' bag to hire nore qualified people.

1:31:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH asked if it's possible to see the effects
on veteran unenploynent brought about by simlar 1legislation
passed in the 37 states.

MR. BOVWEN stated that it would be difficult to track, because
the departnment does not know what percentage of the comrerci al
workforce is providing this preference in each participating
state; therefore, it would be hard to quantify the nunber to a
true, concise figure.

REPRESENTATI VE PARI SH stated he sees the ability to grant this
preference without a threat of future lawsuits as a protection
to enpl oyers.

1: 32: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked to what degree private veteran
preference | aws have "noved the needle"” in veteran hiring.

1: 33: 41 PM

MR. SAN SOUCI stated that it's alnost inpossible to know the
exact effect on veteran hiring. He nentioned that Walmart and
ot her corporations have been supportive of simlar |egislation
Enmpirically showing a relationship wuld be hard. The
legislation is a protective stance.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER stated he generally supports HB 2. He
said he is curious what the effectiveness of noving from public
enpl oyers to private enployers would be. He asked which sector
of Al aska's econonmy M. Bowen suspects wll be nost affected by
the | egislation.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 9- January 24, 2017



1: 35: 06 PM

MR. BOWAEN stated his belief that the biggest inpact on hiring
would likely be in the oil fields. There are small conpanies in
the oil fields that would |like to offer this preference, but are
currently unable to do so. Enpl oyers conme into ESGR daily to
seek assistance in offering this preference.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER appl auded ESGR as an organization, and
stated he would be pleased if this advantage could be used in
the oil fields.

1:37:51 PM

RUSSELL BALL testified in support of the HB 2. As a small
busi ness owner and enpl oyer for over 30 years, he stated that he

has always worried about the risk of civil lawsuit for showi ng a
hiring preference. Veterans have been sone of his best
enpl oyees due to their discipline, troubleshooting, | ogical

thinking, and they are a good pool from which to recruit new
enpl oyees. He expressed his desire for nore veterans to submt
resunes for consideration to his business. He enphasi zed t hat
the transition frommlitary to civilian |life is often scary and
could be overcone nore easily wth the understanding that
veterans are preferred by sone enployers. He stated that as a
smal | enployer, he would never offer a preference unless it was
protected as this bill would do. He nentioned that Al aska wants
to hold onto the best talent in the state. The legislation is a
form of gratitude for those who have served, and an
acknow edgenent of their skills and service.

1:41: 36 PM

DAVI D DEMENNO, Owner, Alaska Land Cearing Inc., offered his
support of HB 2. He stated that he currently has three veterans

working for him The mlitary develops job skills and life
skills to be used by veterans later on in the private work
pl ace. He offered his inpression that conpared to other

enpl oyees, the veterans he enploys are always on tine, take
charge, ask questions, pick up things fast, are famliar wth
heavy equi pnment, get the project done, and are good at working
i ndependent | y. Leadership skills of veterans are superior to
others in the workplace; veterans take pride in their work. He
stated he tries to do whatever he can to hire a veteran, because
they are an asset to the conpany. He nentioned a successful
project at Fort R chardson wrking wth and training a

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -10- January 24, 2017



battal i on. He stated his belief that the legislation wll
greatly benefit the state of Al aska.

1:44:54 PM
CHAI R TUCK cl osed public testinony on HB 2.
1:45: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER addressed instances wthin the bil
where "general discharge"” appears under "honorable discharge
conditions.” He said he would like to make the |anguage for
consi stent.

MR. BOWNEN stated that the wording should be "under honorable
conditions,” which would cover general and honorabl e discharges
and would open up a veteran to all the benefits out there,
including the federal side of [the U S. Departnment of Veterans
Affairs]("the VA").

REPRESENTATI VE RAUSCHER asked for clarification whether al
three instances in the bill should utilize the same | anguage.

MR. BOVEN agr eed.
1:47:20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER referenced AS 36.30.321(f)(3)(B), which
defines a veteran as an individual who "was separated from
service under a condition that was not dishonorable.” He asked
M. Bowen if he is recomending the |anguage be changed to
"ot her than di shonorable".

MR BONMNEN stated that the term "other than di shonorable" is the

phrase the federal governnent uses to establish benefits. In
this case the bill is attenpting to establish a benefit reserved
only for those satisfactorily discharged from the mlitary,
therefore the best | anguage would be "under honor abl e
conditions”", which covers general discharge and honorable
di schar ge. That |anguage would match the |anguage used on

mlitary forms.
REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER repeat ed his question.
MR. BOVWEN answered yes, and said he would use the term "under

honorable conditions”, which covers general and honorable
di schar ges.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -11- January 24, 2017



1: 50: 16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked what circunstances a person would be
di scharged with a general discharge as opposed to an honorable
di scharge. She asked if there are circunstances "not ... soO
benevol ent” that would lead to a general discharge as opposed to
an honor abl e di schar ge.

MR. BOVEN of fered exanpl es of general discharges, which include:
Not passing a skill level or [physical fitness] test, failing
wei ght standards, commtting mnor drug offenses, receiving a
Driving Under the Influence (DU ) citation or speeding ticket,
and being late to formation or deploynent. He stated there is a
ganbit of things that |lead to a general discharge.

1: 53: 10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the change in |anguage presented
by M. Bowen would allow an enployer to see the difference
bet ween a general and honorabl e di scharge.

M. Bowen answered that discharge formw Il stipulate the reason
for discharge, and the enployer would be able to see that.

1:54: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD reiterated that HB 2 is an act related
to a voluntary preference for veterans. The bill does not
prohibit [a hiring preference], but doesn't nandate anyt hing.

1: 55: 03 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked M. Bowen if the phrase on page 1,
line 7, "the armed services of the United States", includes

Nat i onal Guardsnen of any state.

MR. BOWEN responded he does not know, but can research the
answer .

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if, wunder HB 2, soneone's tine
served with another state's National Guard would apply |ikew se.

1: 56: 28 PM

CHAIR TUCK responded that the commttee would Ilook into
Representative Saddler's question and possibly expand the bil

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -12- January 24, 2017



to also include active nenbers of the National Guard. Chair
Tuck asked if Representative Saddl er had a preference.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER expressed no preference, but stated that
it's inportant to clarify all conditions.

1: 57: 23 PM

MR. DCEHL responded that the bill's |anguage would enconpass
service in any other state or territory, as interpreted pursuant
to Title 32 of United States Code. He stated his belief that
the eight-year termis a different discussion.

1:58: 10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked how one could interpret that the
bill includes service in all states, when the bill only lists
Al aska.

1:58: 57 PM

CHAIR TUCK offered his wunderstanding that M. Doehl was
responding to a potential anmendnent to include nenbers of the
Nati onal Cuard.

MR. DOEHL confirmed that is correct.

CHAIR TUCK offered that the |anguage would be corrected before
an anendnent woul d be of fered.

1: 59: 58 PM

CHAIR TUCK stated HB 2 was hel d over

2:00: 26 PM

CHAI R  TUCK, in response to questions and conments from
Representatives  Saddl er, Rei nbol d, Rauscher, and LeDoux,
clarified that Representative Kawasaki would be the chair of the
House Mlitary & Veterans' Affairs Finance Subcomittee. He

stated that there are would not be any alternates in the
subcomm ttee, but any nenber can attend. He stated that in the
subconmittee there are no anendnents - just reconmmrendations to
t he House Finance Standing Comm ttee.

2:05:50 PM

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -13- January 24, 2017



ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs Special Commttee neeting was
adjourned at 2:05 p. m

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -14- January 24, 2017



